



# Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act

Statement of Commitment
Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation
and
Multi-year Accessibility Plan
Revised and restated December 2016

| ps://www.a  | is available on the Archdiocese of Toronto website at: archtoronto.org/about-us/safe-environment/accessibility. |
|-------------|---|
| Alternative | e formats of this document are available upon request.  |
|             |   |
|             |   |
|             |   |
|             |   |
|             |   |
|             |   |
|             |   |
|             |   |

## **Table of Contents**

| AODA Policy and Multi-year Accessibility Plan Revised and restated December 2016 | 2  |
|--|----|
| Definitions  | 4  |
| Statement of Commitment  | 5  |
| Emergency Response and Evacuation Plan Information                               | 6  |
| Integrated Accessibility Standard (IASR) General Requirements                    | 7  |
| Accessibility Policy   | 7  |
| Multi-year Accessibility Plan  | 8  |
| Training   | 9  |
| Customer Service Standard  | 10 |
| Information and Communications Standard  | 12 |
| Accessible Websites  | 12 |
| Feedback   | 13 |
| Accessible Formats and Communication Supports                                    | 14 |
| Employment Standard  | 15 |
| Recruitment  | 15 |
| Support Information for Employees  | 16 |
| Documented Individualized Accommodation Plans                                    | 17 |
| Performance Assessment, Career Development and Advancement and Redeployment      | 18 |
| Transportation Standard  | 19 |
| Design of Public Spaces Standard   | 19 |
| How to Contact Us  | 20 |

## AODA Policy and Multi-year Accessibility Plan Revised and restated December 2016

## **Policy**

The Archdiocese of Toronto is committed to working towards being compliant with all the standards under the **Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA)**, as they become law.

The Archdiocese of Toronto recognizes the fundamental importance of developing, implementing and enforcing standards in a timely manner in order to achieve accessibility to Ontarians with disabilities.

The Archdiocese of Toronto is committed to the principles of independence, dignity, integration and equality of opportunity and to meeting the needs of people with disabilities, through the implementation of this policy.

The Archdiocese of Toronto is committed to establishing, maintaining and implementing policies, as well as associated practices and procedures of the Integrated Regulation (191/11), specifically in the areas of customer service, information, communications and employment, and to meet the accessibility needs of people with disabilities in a timely manner.

The Archdiocese of Toronto is committed to the establishment, implementation, maintenance and documentation of a multi-year accessibility plan, which outlines the Archdiocese's strategies to prevent and remove barriers and meet its requirements under the Integrated Regulation.

The multi-year accessibility plan will indicate how the Archdiocese of Toronto intends to implement the requirements of the integrated regulation within the legislated timelines.

The Archdiocese of Toronto, when providing information to, or communicating with, a person with a disability, will provide information and communication in a manner that takes into account the person's disability.

The commitments in this policy are intended to ensure that accessibility remains a priority in the Archdiocese of Toronto's decision-making process and will serve to assist in ensuring that decisions do not inadvertently create barriers.

## **Scope**

This policy applies to the Archdiocese of Toronto's:

- Clergy
- Employees
- Volunteers
- Visitors
- Applicants for employment who may require employment accommodation through the recruitment, assessment, selection and hiring process.

## Responsibility

Bishops, pastors, managers, immediate supervisors and department heads are responsible for ensuring that all clergy, employees and volunteers (as appropriate) follow guidelines set out in this policy.

They are also responsible to ensure that all clergy, employees and volunteers (as appropriate) are trained under the Accessibility Regulation and Standards under the AODA, the Human Rights Code and all related policies, practices and procedures.

All employees, volunteers, contractors, and any other person acting on behalf of the Archdiocese of Toronto are responsible for adhering to and following the commitments set out in this policy.

## **Definitions**

- "Accessible formats" may include, but are not limited to, large print, recorded audio and electronic formats, Braille and other formats usable by persons with disabilities.
- "Accommodation" means the special arrangements made or assistance provided so that persons with disabilities can participate in the experienced available to persons without disabilities.
- "Communications supports" may include but are not limited to, captioning, alternative and augmenting communication supports, plain language, sign language and any other supports that facilitate effective communications.
- "Communications" means the interactions between two or more persons or entities, or any combination of them, when information is provided, sent or received.
- "**Dignity**" means service is provided in a way that allows the individual to maintain self-respect and the respect of other persons.
- "Equal opportunity" means service is provided to individuals in such a way that they have an opportunity to access good and services equal to that given to others.
- "Independence" means when a person is able to do things on their own without unnecessary help or interference from others.
- "Information" includes data, facts and knowledge that exist in any format, including text, audio, digital or images and that conveys meaning.
- "Integration" means service is provided in a way that allows the individual to benefit from equivalent services, in the same place and in the same manner or similar way, as other individuals, unless an alternative measure is necessary to enable the individual to access goods or services.
- "Reasonable efforts" means taking approaches that meet the required needs of the individual.

## Statement of Commitment

The Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation (IASR) under the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA) requires the Archdiocese of Toronto to develop a multi-year plan to prevent and remove barriers for persons with disabilities.

Every five years, the Archdiocese of Toronto will set a course to prevent, identify and remove barriers for persons with disabilities. Through its multi-year accessibility plan, the Archdiocese of Toronto aims to become barrier-free by 2025.

This course includes complying with the following accessibility standards in:

- Customer Service
- Information and Communications
- Employment
- Design of Public Spaces

The 2016-2021 accessibility plans will help to form planning requirements under the Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation (Integrated Regulation) enacted July 1, 2011 under the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA). The AODA requires the Archdiocese of Toronto to develop, implement and enforce accessibility standards so that goods, services, facilities, accommodation, employment, buildings, structures and premises are accessible to persons with disabilities.

The multi-year accessibility plan outlines the specific steps the Archdiocese of Toronto is taking to improve opportunities for persons with disabilities and comply with the phased-in requirements of the Regulation.

This plan has been developed by the Accessibility Advisor, in consultation with various stakeholders, and in accordance with the Integrated Regulation. It outlines a strategy to prevent and remove barriers and address the current and future requirements of the AODA. It will be provided in an alternative format upon request.

In accordance with the requirements, the Archdiocese of Toronto will:

- Report every 5 years on its website and its progress on implementing this plan.
- Provide all information relating to the plan in alternative formats, upon request.
- Review and update the plan at least once every five years.

The Archdiocese will review, on a yearly basis, the status of the implementation to remove and prevent barriers to achieve accessibility under the AODA.

## **Emergency Response and Evacuation Plan Information**

The Archdiocese of Toronto incorporated accessibility considerations into its emergency response and evacuation plan and procedures for employees and public.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- Instructions were provided to staff regarding evacuation in times of emergency to gather at locations that are accessible.
- Persons with various disabilities were consulted to ensure that we met the needs of all persons with disabilities in our emergency response plan, and that public safety information and instructions are provided in a timely manner if an emergency or disaster occurs.
- Fire and disaster wardens were instructed to identify persons in need of assistance in advance of an emergency to discuss the location of the designated waiting areas are how identified persons will be escorted out.
- The emergency response plan and public safety information for employees was posted on the employee website.
- The emergency response plan and public safety information is available to in an accessible format or with appropriate communication supports upon request.
- Individualized workplace emergency response information is available to employees, who
  have disclosed a disability, and such employees will be accommodated according to their
  disability when and if an emergency or disaster occurs. These individualized plans will be
  communicated to their managers and recorded in their personnel files.
- Employees have been trained on the emergency response plan and/or public safety information and instructions to ensure that they know how to interact with persons with disabilities (employees and customers) during an emergency, incident or dangerous situation.

#### **Planned Actions:**

- The Archdiocese will review our current workplace emergency response and evacuation plan and procedures and post information regarding our procedures in public areas, in 2016.
- Individualized emergency response information will be reviewed when:
  - a) An employee moves to a different location in the organization
  - b) An employee's overall needs or plans are reviewed; and
  - c) When reviewing general emergency response policies

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2012

**Status:** Implemented/addressed on an individual basis as need arises

## Integrated Accessibility Standard (IASR) General Requirements

#### **Accessibility Policy**

The Archdiocese of Toronto accessibility policy and supporting procedures outline our commitment to eliminating barriers and improving accessibility.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- Created a policy that addresses how the Archdiocese of Toronto will achieve or has achieved accessibility through meeting the IASR's requirements.
- The Archdiocese of Toronto's IASR policy and statement of commitment is available to the public on the premises and on the Archdiocesan website.
- The Archdiocese of Toronto IASR policy and statement of commitment is available in an accessible format upon request. The Archdiocese will consult with the person with a disability when identifying the appropriate format.
- The AODA Policy was updated to reflect the changes to the Customer Service Standard under the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA), which came into effect on July 1, 2016.

#### **Planned Actions:**

• Regularly review the policy and statement of commitment and make necessary adjustments if required.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2014

### **Multi-year Accessibility Plan**

The Archdiocese of Toronto multi-year accessibility plan outlines the specific steps we are taking to prevent and remove barriers and comply with current and future requirements of the AODA.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- Established, implemented, and documented the Archdiocese of Toronto's multi-year accessibility plan.
- Posted the accessibility plan on our website and have the plan available in an accessible format upon request.
- The Multi-year Accessibility Plan was updated to reflect the changes to the Customer Service Standard under the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA), which came into effect on July 1, 2016.

#### **Planned Actions:**

- Maintain the Archdiocese of Toronto's multi-year accessibility plan.
- Review and update the accessibility plan at least once every five years.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2014

**Status:** Implemented/updated/ongoing

#### **Training**

The Archdiocese of Toronto is committed to providing all those who interact with the public including existing/new employees, volunteers, contractors, and others acting on behalf of the Archdiocese, as well, all persons who participate in developing organizations policies, training on the requirements of the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005; Accessibility Standards for Customer Service; Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation; and the Human Rights Code as it pertains to people with disabilities.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- The Archdiocese of Toronto provides training for employees and others (as required) on the requirements of the Regulation, as well as Code-related obligations through mandatory training offered through the Archdiocese Human Resources department.
- Retain a record of training, including dates and number of individuals whom have been trained.
- Ensure training on the requirements is provided to new personnel as soon as it is practicable after an individual commences their position.
- Training documents were updated to reflect changes to the Customer Service Standard under the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA), which came into effect on July 1, 2016.
- Employees were informed of the AODA changes, which came into effect on July 1, 2016.

#### **Planned Actions:**

- Maintain the record of training, adding all new trainees' information when trained.
- Provide training in respect to any changes to policies on an ongoing basis.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2015

#### **Customer Service Standard**

The Archdiocese of Toronto has developed policies to comply with Customer Service Standard Regulation and will continue to comply and implement the requirements under this standard.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- Established policies, procedures and practices for providing goods and services to persons with disabilities and posted these in a conspicuous area and on the Archdiocesan website.
- Provided accessibility awareness, AODA and customer service standard training to all staff/volunteers and to those who are involved in the creation and implementation of policies, practices and procedures for the Archdiocese of Toronto.
- Worked with persons in charge of buildings to develop a notification service disruption protocol.
- Added an "Accessibility" button to the footer of the Archdiocesan website to communicate the customer service policy and provide instructions for enhanced accessibility offerings.
- Created a customer service policy that highlights information about accessibility requirements under the AODA including policies, guidelines and mandatory and recommended training requirements for staff and management.
- Reported compliance on the Customer Service Standard on the Accessibility Compliance Reporting tool at Service Ontario's One-Source for Business website.
- Tracked attendance for accessibility training courses.

#### **Planned Actions:**

- Continue to provide reasonable accommodation to "customers" (parishioners) on a case by
  case basis and a yearly review of the types of accommodation requests we receive will
  determine how we can improve accessibility.
- Look at finding and implanting assistive devices or technological enhancements to our information and communication and websites, for the purpose of improving interaction and communication with persons with disabilities.
- Assess premises and other areas where barriers may exist that prevent access to our goods and services.
- Provide appropriate accessible way of finding signage and instruction to visitors.
- Continue to encourage staff to consider accessibility when planning religious ceremonies, meetings and events with parishioners, staff, customers, including vendors and suppliers.
- Remind persons responsible of the building-specific service disruption notification protocols.
- Consider accessibility-related feedback received through all channels (i.e. online feedback form, correspondence, inquiries, meeting evaluations, etc.) by assessing and responding to feedback, as required.

- Review the effectiveness of policy, procedures and practices and make necessary adjustments.
- Continue to highlight Customer Service Policy in education, training and activities.
- New staff/volunteers and those who have not yet received training will be provided AODA customer service training as soon as it is feasible.
- Updated training will be provided when there are changes to the accessibility policies.
- Continue to track and report on training compliance.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2012

## Information and Communications Standard

The Archdiocese of Toronto will incorporate new accessibility requirements under the information and communications standard to ensure that its information and communications systems and platforms are accessible and provided in accessible formats that meet the needs of persons with disabilities. The Archdiocese of Toronto will endeavour to provide necessary communication supports in a timely manner.

#### **Accessible Websites**

The Archdiocese of Toronto's main website and parish subsites, including web content, will conform to the Regulations, except where it is not practicable.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- Posted the accessibility policy and plan on the main site and all sub-sites.
- Created a Web Accessibility Committee to plan for making our Websites accessible to persons with disabilities.
- Developed accessibility guidelines and priorities in the implementation of accessible websites.
- With the Web Accessibility Committee, organized professional training sessions for the webmasters and ongoing training thereafter for new webmasters.
- In process of purchasing license for web accessibility software and assigned support staff to implement ongoing organization-wide reports.
- Initiated a review process to ensure the main site and all sub-sites and web content on those sites conform to WCAG 2.0, Level A.
- Updated the AODA sections of the Archdiocese of Toronto's main website and employee website to reflect the changes to the Customer Service Standard under the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA), which came into effect on July 1, 2016.
- Posted updated accessibility policy, plan and training on the main website and employee website.

#### **Planned Actions:**

- Ensure all websites and web content conform to WCAG 2.0, Level AA other than success criteria 1.2.4 Captions (Live) and success criteria 1.2.5 Audio Descriptions.
- When designing or updating Internet websites, the Archdiocese of Toronto will ensure that it is developed in accordance with the Regulation.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2014 (WCAG 2.0, Level A)

January 1, 2021 (WCAG 2.0, Level AA)

#### **Feedback**

To comply with the AODA Customer Service Standard, the Archdiocese of Toronto put into place a feedback process to receive and respond to feedback about the manner in which we provide goods or services to people with disabilities.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- Ensure that process for receiving and responding to feedback are accessible to persons with disabilities by providing or arranging for the provision of accessible formats and communication supports, upon request.
- Consult with the person making the request to determine suitability of format.
- Notification to the public of the availability of accessible formats and communication supports is noted on various locations including but not limited to, documents, websites and forms.

#### **Planned Actions:**

• Regularly review feedback received to look for ways to remove barriers to accessibility and improve our customer service.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2015

#### **Accessible Formats and Communication Supports**

The Archdiocese of Toronto will provide, or will arrange for the provision of, accessible formats and communication supports with respect to Archdiocesan generated documents, to persons with disabilities upon request. The Archdiocese will do so in a timely manner and in a way that considers the persons accessibility needs due to disability.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- Consult with the person making the request for accessible formats or communication supports and provide the information at a cost that is no more than the regular cost charged to others.
- Notification to the public of the availability of accessible formats and communication supports is noted on various locations including but not limited to, documents, websites and forms.

#### **Planned Actions:**

Continue to provide training to webmasters on how to create accessible documents.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2016

## **Employment Standard**

The Archdiocese of Toronto is committed to fair and accessible employment practices that attract and retain talented employees with disabilities. The Archdiocese of Toronto will incorporate accessibility requirements under the employment standard to ensure that barriers are eliminated and corporate policies are followed where applicable.

#### Recruitment

The Archdiocese of Toronto will assess recruitment policies, practices and procedures, methods and attitudes to identify and remove barriers to employment of persons with disabilities.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- Specify on the Archdiocese of Toronto's website and in job advertisements, that accommodation is available for applicants with disabilities.
- Notify employees and the public about the availability of accommodation in its recruitment processes for applicants with disabilities.
- Inform candidates about the availability of accommodations:
  - o when called for an interview
  - o during the selection process
  - o at the time of job offer
  - at orientation
- If the selected applicant requests an accommodation, consult with the applicant and arrange for the provision of a suitable accommodation in a manner that takes into account the applicant's accessibility needs.
- When making offers of employment, notify the successful applicant of policies for accommodating employees with disabilities.

#### **Planned Actions:**

• Provide parishes with the same structure as Catholic Pastoral Centre, by creating a standard job advertisement template and a guideline document on how to invite persons with disabilities to apply for positions.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2016

#### **Support Information for Employees**

The Archdiocese of Toronto will assess its supporting documents, policies, practices and procedures, methods and attitudes to identify and remove barriers to employment of persons with disabilities.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- Inform current employees and new hires soon after they begin employment of the Archdiocese of Toronto's policies supporting employees with disabilities, including, but not limited to, policies on the provision of job accommodations that take into account an employee's accessibility needs due to disability.
- Provide information under this section to new employees as soon as practicable after they begin their employment.
- Keep employees up to date on changes to policies.
- Provide accessible formats and communication supports to any employees who request them. If requested, the Archdiocese will consult with the employee to provide or arrange for provision of accessible formats and communication supports for:
  - o information that is needed in order to perform the employee's job
  - o information that is generally available to employees in the workplace

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2016

#### **Documented Individualized Accommodation Plans**

The Archdiocese of Toronto will assess its return-to-work and accommodation plans, practices and procedures, methods and attitudes to identify and remove barriers to employment of persons with disabilities.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- The process allows the employee requesting accommodation to participate in the development of the plan.
- The process includes a means by which the employee is assessed on an individual basis.
- Individualized accommodation plan is provided in writing to any employee with a disability.
- The Archdiocese can request an evaluation by an outside medical or other expert, at the Archdiocese's expense, to assist the Archdiocese in determining if and how accommodation can be achieved.
- Provide an individualized return-to-work plan in writing for any employee who has been absent from work due to a disability and requires disability-related accommodations to return to work.
- Steps are taken to protect the privacy of the employee's personal information.
- Outline the frequency in which individual accommodation plans will be reviewed and updated and the manner in which it will be done.
- Provide the employee with the reasons for the denial if the individual accommodation plan is denied.
- Provide the individual accommodation plan in a format that takes into account the employee's accessibility needs.
- Any individualized workplace emergency response information is included in the plan.
- Identify any other accommodation that is to be provided to the employee, including ergonomic assessments and assistive devices, as required.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2016

## Performance Assessment, Career Development and Advancement and Redeployment

The Archdiocese of Toronto will assess its performance reviews, career development and advancement, redeployment programs, policies, practices and procedures, methods and attitudes to identify and remove barriers to employment of persons with disabilities.

#### **Completed Actions:**

- Reviewed and revised the Archdiocesan performance development process.
- Ensure the accessibility needs of employees with disabilities and their individualized accommodation plans are taken into account:
  - o when assessing their performance
  - o in managing their career development and advancement
  - o when redeploying them
- Provide information regarding performance management, career development and advancement, and redeployment in an accessible format upon request.
- Accessibility objectives will be included in yearly performance development plans for employees as needed.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2016

## **Transportation Standard**

This standard does not apply to the Archdiocese of Toronto.

## **Design of Public Spaces Standard**

The Archdiocese of Toronto is committed to greater accessibility in, out of, and around the buildings we use. The Archdiocese of Toronto will ensure that facilities incorporate the standards for barrier-free design as existing spaces are renovated and/or new spaces are obtained.

#### **Planned Actions:**

- Exterior paths of travel (sidewalks or walkways) and associated elements such as ramps, stairs, and curb ramps, when renovated and/or built new will comply with the set Regulations.
- When accessible off-street parking spaces are renovated and/or built new the Archdiocese of Toronto will comply with the set Regulations.
- When renovated/new spaces are being built, service counters and waiting areas/lines will comply with the set Regulations.
- The Archdiocese of Toronto is committed to maintaining the accessible parts of our public spaces. When any renovation/new construction to an accessible area is underway the Archdiocese will post a sign to explain the disruption and set up a temporary alternative.

Required legislative compliance: January 1, 2017

**Status:** In progress

## **How to Contact Us**

The Archdiocese of Toronto has a process in place for receiving and responding to feedback that is accessible to persons with disabilities. For more information, questions, or concerns regarding accessibility at the Archdiocese of Toronto or to request communication in an accessible format please contact the Human Resources department.

#### In Person:

Archdiocese of Toronto 1155 Yonge Street Toronto, ON M4T 1W2

Telephone: 416-934-0606

Fax: 416-934-3432

Email: accessibility@archtoronto.org